
UN ITED STATES 
F.NVIRONMENTAL PIlOTECTION AGENCY 

IlEGION 8 

IN THE MATrER OF 

I,ake Sakakawea & Associates, LLC 
2500 9th A venue NW Apt. I 
Mandan. ND 58554-1526 

RI.:spondent. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

1'1\h.:I..'I.:ding lu assess ('[<ISS Il j1I,:nalty uml~r ) 
Section S 309(g) orthe ) 
Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g) ) 

) 

Docket No. CWA-08-2011-0017 

COMI'LAINANT'S MOTION 
FOil DEFAULT 

I I •. L!'.J: . 

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.17, Complainant United States Environmental Protection Agency 

Region 8 (EPA), by its undersigned counsel, tiles this MOTION FOR DEFAULT against Respondent 

Lake Sakakawea & Assoc iates. LLC (Respondent). As shown in the accompanying memorandum in 

:--lIppml llt" Ihis l11otion. the pn:siding of1il:er should (1) lind the Respondent liable /(Jr the violations 

. \ 

alleged in the Complaint and Not ice of Opportunity fo r I learing (Complaint) filed in this matter on June 

22, 2011; and (2) impose the civil penalty of $84,000 assessed against the Respondent in the Complaint, 

plus interest and late fees. EPA moves for a default order based on the Respondent' s failure to file a 

timdy answer to or otherwise contest the Complaint, and subsequent wai vcr of Respondent's riglll to 

Oato: -'-1!;: /2. / 2-
I I 

Rcspcct i'ldly submittcd, 

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION AGENCY, REGION 8 

1y Swans 1, Enforcement Allorncy 
U.S. EPA R(:gion 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street (81:NF-L) 
Dcnwr. Coloradu S0202-1129 
Colorado Atty. Reg. No. 26488 
Telephone: (303)312-6906 
facsimile: (303) 312-6953 



CERTIFI CATE OF SERVICE 

Thl.,.' umkr::;ignl.'u ]H.:n.:by I.:l.'rtilics that the origimll and one copy or the MOTION FOR 

DEFAULT and MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT were hand-carried 10 Ihe Regionailicaring Clerk, 

EPA Rl.:gioll 8. 1595 Wynkoop Street. Denver, Colorado, and that truc copics or the same wt.:rc sent as 

tollows: 

Via hand delivery to: 

Thl' Ilonorablc EI~alla It SUlin 
Rl'giollal .Iudil!ial Onk ... ·r 
U.S. EPA Region 8 (8R(,) 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, CO 80202- 1159 

Via Ct:rtificd Mail to: 

1 ,!Ike Sakakawca & Associates, LLC 
3765 Ilighway 1806 
Mandan. ND 58554-8240 

L 13(2012 
Date *c!41,-m (:;nature 



IN Till : MATrER OF 

UN ITED STATES 
ENVIRONM ENTA L PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 8 

Docket No. C WA-08-20 11-00 17 

Lak!.! Sakakaweu & Associates. LLC ) 

1011 APR - 3 P~1 I: 02 

2500 9th 
/\ venue NW Apartment 1 ) 

Mandan. ND 58554-1526 ) 
MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION 
FOR DEFAULT 

) 
Rc.::spondcnt. ) 

Introduction 

This memorandum is tiled in support of a motion lor default and request lo r the 

assessment of civil penalties brought by Complainant, the United States Environmental 

Protection Agency (EPA), in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22. 17 or the Consolidated Rules of 

Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, Issuance of Compliance or 

Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocation. Temlination or Suspension of Penn its 

( IUlsolid:ltI:d Rules). 40 t.F.R. Part 12. 

This request for a default order and assessment of penalties is based on Respondent Lake 

Sak!lkaewa & Associates, LLC's (Respondent) failure to Hie a timely answer to the Complaint, 

and subsequent waiver of Respondent's right to contest all facts alleged in the Complaint. 

Background 

Respondent is a North Dakota limited liability company doing business within the State 

of'North Dakota. Respondent is a person within the meaning of section 502(5) of the Clean 

Water Act (Act), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5), and therefore subject to the requirements and/or 



regulations orthe Act. On October 12,2007, Respondent submitted to the North Dakota 

Department of Health (NDDH) National Pollutant Discharge Elimi nation System (N PDES) 

Program and the EPA a copy ora Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the Eagle 

('atc:h Casino & Resort Construclion Site (S ite ) development. The Site is located in Seclion 17, 

I o\\l1ship 146 North. Runge ~~ West. Mercer Country, North Dakota, within the exterior 

boundaries of the Fon Benhold Indian Reservation. 

Effective July I, 2003 (and modi fied January 21, 2005), the EPA issued a NPDES 

General I)ermit lor Storm water Discharges from Conslruction Activities (Permit ), authorizing 

discharges ufstorm water associated with large and small construction activities thut result in t1 

II1I;!! !alld di"'turb~lIlL'l' oj' l'lluallo or grl'i.l ter than one acre, whl're.' those dischurgcs L~ntcr surl~lce 

waters oflhe United States, ifdone in compliance with the conditions of the permit. The Permit 

has been in effect at all times relevant to this act ion. On December 21, 2007. Respondent 

submilled a Notice of Intent (N0l) to the EPA for construction requesting authoriz.ation to 

discharge storm water at the Site pursuant to the Pennit. Coverage fo r thc Site undcr the Penni! 

! h :--.JI>R 1 OASH I) was obtained 0n Decl'mber 28, 2007. 

TIll' l'I.'L:L'iving wah:r for thl' Site's storm WUh:r, snow l11elt. 5urlaL:e drainage and run olTis 

Lake Sakakawea (Lake). The Lake is a navigable water and a watcr oCthe U.s. as defi ned by the 

Act and EPA regulations, respectively, 33 U.S.c. § 1362(7); 40 C.F.R. § 122.2. Storm water 

L'ontains "pollutants" as deli ned by the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(6), The stonn water discharge 

from the Site is a "dischnrge pollutant" as defined in section 502(12) of the Act. 33 U.S .C. 

* 1 :;6~t 12). :lnd 4U C, F.R. * 121,2. Th\.: Site constitutes a "point source" within the meaning of 

section 502(14) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14), and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2. 
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Respondent commenced construction activities during the spring of2008 at the Site on a 

"15 ,IU\.' Indian ,\lIlltml'l1! hdd by Dak-I.ink' Sold il"l'. Specilil"ally. Rt:spondent beg<lll Phase I of 

tbe plaum:tI tlt.:\ elopmcnt project includi ng, but nol limited to. si te \-\ork and mad construction 

consisting of clearing and grading, Respondent's construction activities at the Site resulted in the 

disturbance of approximately 12 acres of land, Through Respondent's construction activities, 

Respondent engaged in an "industrial activity" within the meaning of 40 C.F,R. § l22.26(b)(14). 

Construction activities Ht the Site ceased in the Ell1 ot'2008 prior to the completion of 

I'lmst.: I ut'thl·l:onstnll.:t iun, On Jum: 2 ... L 2009. an I.luthoriz,,'d rcpn:scntatin: of the U.S, I\rmy 

Corps of Engineers (Corps) inspected the Site and observed, among other things, the rollowing: 

no erosion control measures; erosion around the perimeter of the disturbed area; growth of 

noxious weeds; no topsoil, vegetation, or reseeding; and un-stabilized site conditions. 

On September 29.2009. the NOOll Di vision of Water Quality conveyed to the EPA 

1.11ltlpl:linh rql: lrding Ilk' Sitl' that V .. I.·!,l' l',\prl'ssl'd to th .. , M~rc(.:r CDUllly Cn!l1mi:-ision 

(Colllmissioners), Such complaints received by the NODI I included t:xtcnsiw erosion and 

growth of noxious weeds resulting from the removal of top soil and ineffective sediment cOIHrol 

measures or native vegetation reseeding. Erosion and invasive, non native vegetation are 

potentially threatening the Site, surrounding slopes, and the Lake. 

On Ikl'l·l11hl: r~. ~009 , Ihl' F PA ISSUl'c! a RL'qucst lor Information (Request) 10 

f{I.'~pllllLknt pursuant to sc .. ,tion 308 of the 1\(.;\. 33 U ,S.C. * 1318. with a response being due 

within forty live days ofreceipL The EPA first sen t the Request via certified mail in December 

2009 to the mailing address submitted with the NO!. Absent receipt, EPA again sent the Request 

via certilied mail in February 20 10 to the Respondent at his Mandan address located in the 
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phOIll:book. Thl: Rl!spondent signcd for thl! Request on February 3. 20 I O. resulting in the 

response being due on or before March 4, 2010. The EPA sent the Respondent a rl:minder letter 

of1he past due response on April 21 ,2010, requesting notice of the Respondent's intent to 

comply with the Request within fourteen days. On May 5, 2010, the EPA received an e--mail 

from an engineering firm on the Respondent's behalf indicating that the Respondent intended to 

l'Olllpl) with thl! Rl,.'qut:st and wmdd provide background infonnation within a fcw days. 

Because the EPA did not rt.::co..:ive the promiso..:d background information much less a 

response to the Request, the EPA issued a Notice of Opportunity to Confer regarding the Reqw:st 

on June 29, 2009. Among other things, the request required the Respondent to provide the EPA 

with copit..'s of items required by the Permit, sllch as, the SWPPP, descript ion and SilC map of 

Ikst I\lan,lg.l'I1l\,!!1! Pr;Ktic\'!s (BMPs) illswlled at the Site. and all storm water self .. inspeclions 

conduct\!d althl! Site. 

The EPA received a response to thc Request (Response) on behalf of Respondent, dated 

July 15, 20 I 0, stating that Respondent could not find certain information including, but not 

limited to, the selt'..inspection datcs and corresponding reports. The Response contuined a 

swppp \vhich !;likd to meet the !ollowing Permit requirements: identification of all construction 

site Opl'nHUrS and thcir area or control. a description of interim stabilization practices, post 

rtllthoriz<ltion records. a description afnon-stonn watcr discharges, and documentation of 

pernwnent digibility as related to Endangered Species. The Response containcd 11 SWppp 

which described and located BMPs which were not installed at the Site as observed by the Corps. 
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On June 22, 2011 the Complaint and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing (Complaint) was 

likd ill this matter under sCL,tion 309(g) urthe Act. 33 U.S .C. § 1319(g) <Jnd successfully served 

llil the Rl'spondenL on July 11,201 I. The Complaint seeks the assessment an administrative 

penalty proposed against the Respondent in the amount 01'$84,000, This proposed penalty 

amount is based on consideration of the appl icable statutory penalty factors in section 309(g)(3) 

of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 13 19(g)(3). The statutory factors include the nature, circumstances, extent 

and gravity of the violation(s); the violator's ability to pay; any history of prior violations; the 

~h.'t!-n:1.' llrL"lllpllhilil~: all) eL'ollomi<: ocnl'litlo the viol mol' resulting J"rolllihe violations; and 

olher faclors as justice may require. 

Standard for Finding Default 

The regulation governing default in the Consolidated Rules of'Practice is found at § 22.17 

orthe Rules ofPraclice, 40 C.F.R. § 22. 17. Section 22.17(<'1) orthe Rules or Pract ice providl.!s as 

t\ pari)' nUl) bl.! II.HmJ to be in dl.'llllllt: aJ'tl.!r mOlion. llpon Ibilur<.' to lill! u timely 
answer to the complaint; ... or upon failure to appear at a conference or 
hearing ... Default by Respondent constitutes, for purposes of the pending proceeding 
only, an admission or all facts alleged in the complaint and a waiver of respondent's 
right to contest such factual allegat ions. 

Additionally, § 22.17(b) provides that when a default motion requests the assessment of a 

l:ivil penalty, the moving party must specify the penalty and give the legal and lactual 

g,J"I)U!ld", Illr tlw rl.'lil'j" n,:qul.'stl!d. 

40 C.F.R. § 22.17(c) provides when thl.! Presiding Oniccr linds that dctauit has 

occurred, he shall issue a default order against the defaulting party as to any or all parts or 

the proceeding unless the record shows good cause why a default order should not be 

In thl' Matter or I.akl' Sakaka\.\I!<l & Associates, LLC 
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iSSll~d. If the unh.:r rl!solws all outstanding issues and claim!) in the proccl!ding. it shall 

constitute the initial decision ... Thc relief proposed in the complaint .. shall be ordl!red 

unless the requested relief is clearly inconsistent with the Act. 

Argument 

I. Respondent F'lih.'d to Fill' an Answer 

..to C LR. * 21.17(a) pro,id l'!) in pl!rtincnt pari: "A party may be found to be in default; 

<.IlkI' motion, upon [ailure to till.: a timely answer to the complaint ... :. 40 C.r.R. * 22.15(a) 

spccities that an "answer to the complaint must be filed with the Regional [fearing Clerk within 

30 days after service orthe complaint." 

The EPA likd the Complaint in this matter on June 22, 2011. In a(.;cordance with 40 

('.1 .R. * 22.5{b){l) (Filing. !)I!fvicc. and form orull filed documents: business eonlidentiality 

claims), tht.! Complaint along with a copy o rthe Consolidated R.ules were served on Responden t 

by certified mail, return-receipt requested. The return-rece ipt prepared by the United States 

Postal Service and completed by Respondent's Registered Agent indicates that the Regi stered 

Agent accepted service for the Complaint on July 15, 2011. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. 

* ~:: .. ':;; {b)( 1). Rl'Spol1<.h.'I1I·S thirty~day tim~rrarll~ for filing Wl answ~ r l:xpired on August 16.2011. 

In thb: instanc~. R~spolll..knt [lili:d not un1y 10 file a time!) ans\vcr. but ! ~lilcd to filt': an 

answer altogether. Respondent was warned of the consequences of failure to tile a limely answer 

in the Complaint and the accompanying cover letter. The Complaint included speci Jic, 

highlighted language, informing Respondent oC its right to request a hearing and lile an answer. 

Additional language speci fied the potentia! consequences of not filing an answer, includ ing a 

pussibk' dd~llllt jlJdgmcnl and aSSl,!:ssment o f the proposed penalty. The cover letter st ressed the 

In the Matter of Lake Sakakawea & Associates. LLC 
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need fur a timely answer, and provided information regarding the process for Respondent to fil~ 

an answer. 

])I.:'jpit~ such \\l.lrning. Rt'spond~nt I~tilcd to comply with the answer n:quircments set 

forth in the Consol idated Rules, and/or failed to seck an order from the Presiding Officer 

granting an extension of time in which to file the Respondent's answer. Such failure to respond 

provides an appropriate basis for finding the Respondent in default. 

II. Prima Facie Cnsc of Liability 

J\ dl.'l~ndt ordl.'r is appropriaH.' when the EPA has established a prima faeie case ortiability 

against thl! Respondent. J\ prima facie case is shown by est<lblishingjurisdiction and facts 

sufficient to conclude Respondent violated the Act. The EP J\ has jurisdiction over Respondent 

as the agency responsible for monitoring Respondent's compliance with the Act. The facts 

underlying Respondent's noncompliance with the SWPPP, the 13MPs, and the requirement to 

!.:U!1thH:t sitt, inspt'ctiolls and prepare reports cst(tblish a prima facie case orliability which is 

~k'arl) tknHlllstmtcd b) thl.: administnnivc record. 

When a Respondent fails to file an answer, the Respondent presents no evidence to 

contradict the alleged violations, and Respondent waives its right to contest them. See In Ihe 

Maller (~r Pan American Growers Supply, Inc. , Docket No. FIFRA-04-2010-3029 (November 

30.2010, AU I3mb,lra A. Gunning), Inlhe Mafler 0/ James Bond. Owner. BOlld's Body Shop. 

I )(lL'k~'1 Nu'i. ('WA - (JS-~O()-l-OU-l7 and RCRJ\-OS-2004-0004 (January 11.2005. Cbier ALJ Susan 

I.. Biro); and Wtller Enterprise.\· NU1'Ihll'esl. IlIc .. Docket No. SDWA-I 0-2003-0086 (July 22. 

2004, RJO Alfred C. Smith). The strict language set forth in 40 C. F.R. § 22.17(u) for not filing 

an answer. and the number of admin istrative decisions consisten tly enforcing this language. 

In the Matter of Lake Sakakawca & Associates, LLC 
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"upport <I \\ai\l'!' ur' RL'spunJI.'nt"s rights '1Il<.l imposition oftht: penalty proposed in th is matter. 

III. Respondent's Noncomplhll1cc with the Act and the Administrative Proceedings Pose 

Various Potential Threats to the Lake 

Respondent's disregard for the Act and EPA's authority pose a potential health threat to 

the pt:l'sons and wildlife served by Lake Sukakawea, as well as to the quality of the Lake itself 

I I ,~' ( \ 11'1'" \11"0,,1.'1'\ l 'U l'\l'\,:ssi, L' l.'fOsilln from thL' Site do\\ n gra<.lit:nt toward thL' l.akL'. The 13M Ps 

n:~llIirl'd by th!..! Ad. bUlmissing throughuut most orlh(: SitL' . would have minimiz(.'d s..:dill1 (,.'nt 

discharges. Additionally. the Respondent would have controlled its discharges and minimil.cd 

sediment erosion threatening surrounding slopes, land owned by the Corps and the Lake had the 

Respondent implemented their SWPPP and properly installed and maintained their BMPs, 

Section 305(b) of the Act requires cuch state to conduct water quality surveys to 

dl"ll'rminl."l \\<111.'1' bod~ 's u\l.'nlll hl.,;;tlth, im.:luding \\hL'1111.:r designat(.'d L1ses an: being 1m .. '\. St<.I1l!S 

and other jurisdictions conduct water quality surveys and report the: lindings to thl: EPA cwry 

two years. The EPA then prepares a biennial report to Congress, which represents the most 

complete and up~to~dale snapshot of water quality conditions around the country, Iligh sediment 

loads can cause sedimentation of our nation's waters. whieh the EPA found in 2004 to be one of 

USEPA. 2009. Nafional Wafer QualifY Inwlllory: 200-1 Report 10 C017xre.\·.,·. I:PAS4 I ~R-OS~OO I. 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Oflice of Water, Washington, DC. 

Discharges from construction sites have been identified as a source of pollution in 14 

pcn.:cnt of impaired rivers and 6 percent of impaired lakes, ponds, and reservoirs. Other 

pnllutanh can hI.' ahsorhcd into line sed iment. causing nutrients .. especially phosphorus. metals. 

In the MattL'r or L<lkL' S<lkukawca & Assol.:iates. LLC 
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and organic compounds. to move into aquatic ccosystems. See USEPA. 1998. National Waler 

QualifY Illvenlmy: 1996 ReporllO Congress. EPA841 -R-97-008. U.S. Environmental Protect ion 

Agency, Office of Water, Washington, DC. 

I ht' EPI\ has lound that erosion rates from constrtlc tion sites urc much grealCr than from 

almost any other lancluse. Suspended sediment concentrat ions from construction sites have been 

IOllnd to be many times the concentrations from developed urban areas. Excess sediment is 

associated with increased turbid ity, reduced light penetration in the watcr column, long-term 

habilal destruction, and increased difficulty in filtering drink ing water. S'ee 64 fed. Reg. 68722. 

6S728-6S73I (Dl.'c. 8. 1999) fo r more inl(mnation on how dischmges from construction sites 

t\tll ... t ' \\;111..'1" pollution. 

The EPI\ and states with au thori zed NPDES programs rely on the permit program to 

implement the controls needed to prevent water pollution. The Rcspondcllt"s failure to properly 

comply with the Permit and SWPPP jeopardizes the integrity of EPA's and NDDH 's programs to 

control sediment pollution. Such negligent disregard for the wellbeing of the Lake and the land 

,l\\ Ilt·.! h~ tht' Corps cannot hI.' condoned. A d<.'!~lllit order holding thc Respondcnt accountable 

lor its inut"tion is net"t'ssary to ensure adequute protection tor those persons und wildlife serviced 

b) the Lake. 

IV. Lcgallwd FllCtu.d Grounds in Support of the Penalty Sought 

The legal authority for assessing a penalty for alleged violations orthe Act is set forth in 

,,~,~·t iOIl J09( g.) of tht" I\c\. :)3 lJ .S.C. ~ 1319(g). and 40 C .F. R. § 22.13. Section 309(g) of the 

.\cL 11 l .S.C § 1319(g). <lllthuri/t's Iht" usst'ssmcnt of a civil administraliH~ pellall) of up to 

$11.000 per day lor each violation or an order issued undcr section 309(g) of the I\(.;t, 33 U.S.C'. 

In the Matter of Lake Sakakawea & Associates. LLC 
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~ 1-; Il)\~). B:1S( • .'U on thl' Ihrq!.oing lindings. the authority set forth in section 309(g)(I)(A) of the 

I\('t, 33 USc. § 1319(g)(l )(A). and the inllmionary adjustment rate at ~O C.F.R. * 19.4. thi! 

Complainant proposes that the Administrator issue a Final Ordcr assessing civil administratiw 

penalties in the amount 01'$84,000 for violations of section 301 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311, 

and for violations of a condition or limitation of a pcrmit issued under section 402 or the Act, 33 

U.S.c. * 1342. 

In panil:ular. the Complaint alleges 1hm Rcspom,h.:ntlailed to abide by an adequate 

SWPPP, failed to implemcnt cffective I3MPs, failed to temporarily and permancntly stab il i:t.e the 

soi l on the Site, and failed to comply with the inspection requirements undcr the Pennit. If the 

Rt.:spondent had compl ied with the requirements oCthe Act, the Respondent would have 

(,\llltrollcd its discharges and minimized sed iment erosion threatening surrounding slopes. land 

])I.:cembcr 21. 2007. the date the NOI was submitted. to the date th<.' Casino proje(.;1 ended. on or 

about April 20, 2011, for a total of375 days. 

The Respondent fai led to comply with the requirements for cilective BMPs and 

inspections under the Permit from May 1,2008. the estimated project start datI.:. to the date the 

p(.·rwhy \\-,IS ca[cll1.1I\!d . April 20. 2011. for a Iota I of [.084 days. Final stabilir.alion activitit:=s 

WI.:I'I.: !l(.'vcr completed at Ihe Site and the SWPPP remains inadequate. 

In accordance with the section 309(g) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(d), and the Civil 

Penalty Intlation Adjustment Rule (Rule). 20 C.F.R. Part 19, courts are allowed to assess 

penalties of up 10 $32.500 per day for each violation occurring betwcen March 15. 2004. and 

.Ia1111<11') I~. 2009. al1d lip \() $37,500 pCI' day for each viulation ancr Janu,lry 12.2009. The 
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statutory ma:dmum penalty allowable under the Act and Rule between December 21, 2007 and 

January 12,2009 is $21,807,500 and the maximum allowable aftcr January 12, 2009 is 

$33,975,000. The total maximum penalty allowable under the Act and Rule totals $55,782,500. 

Sl.'l.,tioll 309(g)(3) of the Act. 33 U,S.C'. § 1319(g)(3) sets forth the app li cab le statutory 

pl.'Jli.lh~ !:H.:tors 10 cOll~iJer in assessing a ci\ il aciminislraliw Pl."llulty, including Ihe nature, 

circumstances, extent and gravi ty oflhe vio lation(s); the violator's ability to pay; allY history of 

prior violations; the degree of culpability; any economic benefit to the violator resulti ng from the 

violations; and other factors as justice may require, The statutory factors were lIsed in 

calculaling the proposed penalty becallse EPA's CW A programs have not adopted pleading 

p(,!Jwlty policies in administrative litigation. Sec OECA Guidance on Usc of PcmtllY Policit.!s in 

Administrative Litigation at p.2, rn.2. 

The proposed penalty in this matter, comprised solely of g ravity and economic benefit, is 

consistent with these statutory fac tors. Please sec the attached Declaration of Natasha Davis for a 

'\)lllPldl~'Il"i\ I.: disl'U""iull of Ii\)\\ Illl.' pl.'n~tlt~ in this mailer was calculated bast.!u on the 

;lpplicahll.: <.;Ialulury fal'lurs. !\ gl' llcnd discussion Oil tIK- penalty <.:akulalinn is as follows. 

GmvilY is a monetary value relk-clive orlhe seriollsness orlhe violm ions and tIll.! 

population at risk. In this malter, the EPA calculated a gravity component or $64,718.40 for the 

months of May 2008 when Ihe project began, until it ended in April 201 J. The Corps found 

~hlrill!;! inspeclions conducted in 2009 th,l! Ihe Respondent hlilcd to initially install adequate 

H\lll~ to IIl~UHlgl' storm \\all.' r on till' Sill.!. Fllrthcrmorl.!, th~ Respondent tailed to udequat t.!ly 
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rnmlngi.' stonn waH:r on sitl..' during the duration orthe project as found during inspections 

!.;ulldlH.:h.'d by tht: Corp:o; in 20 I O. 

Thc Lake is the receiving water lor the construction site. Receiving waters where the 

water pro\ides high-quality habitat for ti sh, other aquatic life and wildlife, is suitable lor 

secondary contact recreation, and a source of public water supply is considered to provide high 

quality water. The State of North Dakota's water quality division has listed the Lake as a Class I 

sllrhlC~ \\uk'l". Class I \\'al~rs are ddined by the state as being suitable lor the propagation and/or 

pro!l.:ction of resident lish species and other aquatic biota and lor sv,timming. boming. and other 

recremion. 

The Site posed substantial potential harm to the environment. The pot~ntial runoff from 

the Site had a likelihood of impacting the Lakl!'s coldwater lishcry through sedimentation from 

hank erosion from thl' Site. Sediment erosion had the potential to impHct the coldwater lishery 

dl'sigmlliun for the I.ake dw.: tu the absl:llce o r BMPs at the Site during the lollowing months 

when pn.:cipitation was greater than 0.5 inches: June to October 2008, May to July 2009, 

Sl:plember and October 2009, and April 2010. (Precipitation data was provided by Utah State 

University Climate Center. See website http://climate.usurCusu.cdulproducts/data.php. Last 

visited February 21. 2012.) 

I hI..' Sill' disturhed a tutal of approximl.ltely 12 ,Icres. Although the Respondent prepared 

as WI'PP dated October 2007, the SWPPP docs not include all required clements as requirt.!d by 

tilL: Permit. I'he EPA idc\lli!kd thaI the SWPPP was rnissing Ihl: rollowing ckll1cnts: 

idl:nti licmiol1 of all conslruction sill' opcrmors and their urea of control, a description of interim 

J 11 th ... , Maller 01" L~lh' Sakakuwc<l & Associates. LLC 
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stabilization practices, post authorization records, a description or non-storm watcr discharges, 

and documentation of pcnnanent el igibility as related to Endangered Species. 

The specific SWPPP deficiencies that could have impacted actual s ite conditions include, 

irnrli:ll1l.!nl<1tiun o r BMPs or di sdmrge of pollutants wcre the failure to identify all construction 

... itl.' llp~'lat llr~ and lill..:ir arl..:<1 oj' l:on11"01. intl..:!"im slabi!ii'.alion prat:lin:s, and thi; Ullt:umt:nlalion or 

eligibility as relmed to Endangered Species. The SWPPP should have been corrct:h:d during the 

months of June to October 2008, May to July 2009, September and October 2009, and April 

2010. During an inspection by the Corps in 2009, it was detennined that the 12 acre Site was 

unprotect~d due to the absence of BMPs. The I3MPs that were to have bcen inst<l!il.!d as listed in 

Ihl.' "WI']>I' \\ nl.' not oO:-;I.'rvt.'d b) Ihe inspectors and no tempomry sHlbil ization pwt:tices w!.!rc 

ulilizl..:d t.'specially in regards to the vu lnerabk steep hilllot:utcd on the Site which was previollsly 

stripped of vegetation, 

The Pennit requires than an inspection frequency must be identified in the SWPPP. The 

Re~pondent's SWPPP states that inspections will occur every 14 (hlYs o r within 24 hours ora 

:-; tllnll t' \l'nl grt.'atl.'r than 0.5 int:hl.!s of rain, J-Io\\cwr, tIll' Permit stales that insp!.!ctions must bt: 

<,'oIHlul'I~'d I." ('r) I ~ da) s anll \\ ithin 2~ hours of a sto!"m ~wn great!.!!" than 0.5 inchl.!s. 1'0 ens urI..: 

compliance with the permit, Respondent would need to conduct 26 inspections per year 

according to the 14 day schedule, In addition, data from May 1,2008 to April 20, 20 11 indicates 

that there were 14 days where precipitation was 0.5 inches or greater. [d. Thus, the Respondent 

avoidl'd conducting an estimated 30 inspect ions per year or the project. 

In addiliull to gnl\ it) .thl.' I:PA cakuiall;'d an economic benefit componenl 01'$ 18,792 

which cunsists 01'( I) Ihe CuslS or cr~ating un adequate S WPPP and kCl.!ping it up 10 date and 

In the Malter of Lake Sakakawea & Associates, LLC 
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complete lor the months of January 2008 to April 20 J I ($2); (2) the cost of implementing and 

maintaining BMPs for tht, months of January 2008 through April2011 ($16,649); and (3) the 

~()st uf Ix'rfunning inspl.!clions to sal isly Iht.: permit requirements for tht.: monlhs or January ZOUS 

to April2011 ($2, 141 ). These th ree costs would have been incurred by the Respondent had the 

Respondent been in compliance with the provisions under the Act. By including these costs in 

the penalty, the economic benefit enjoyed by Respondent for not complyi ng with the regulations 

is eliminated. The gravity and economic bcnelit components combined, adjusted upwards for 

pk·:lding. pllq'){)~I.·~. totab $S-l.UUO. 

The pt.:nalty proposed in thl! Complaint is consistent wilh the applit.:ublc SH\IUlOry ti.1C IOl'S. 

Courts havc readily imposed penalties in default actions where the requested rclicfis consistt:l1t 

with the statutc. See In the Maller of' Mr. Allen Bany, Mr. Tim Btll'lY d/b/a AI/en /Jany 

Livestock, Docket No. CW A-OS-20 I 0-0008 (20 II ). III Ihe Maller oll'arl)' Farms. LLe. Docket 

Nu. CW J\·OX-~() I ()-()OO~ (20 I 0). III Ihe Maller of B/adill/on Commo11. I.LC and ('02, Inc., 

Duc:kl.,t No. RCRA·O 1·2007·0 164 (2009), III Ih" Maller of Keenholcl Assnciwes. I:TA L., Docket 

No. TSCA~03 ~2007 ·0084 (2007), In [he Maller of Frank D. Smith & 5,'011.\'. Inc .. Docket No. 

CWA-02-2005 ~3801 (2006), In fhe MaffeI' of Avon Fuel and Supply Co. and Frebru, In(, ... , 

Docket No. CWA-03-2003-0269 (2004). 

Conclus ion 

R~sromkllt t~lik-d to lik an ans\\t'r to thi..' Complaint. For Ihe reasons set ii.)rth abo\'(..', 

Compluinanl rl.!qul.!sts Ihat the Presiding Oniccr lind the Respondelll in dcJflUlt ,1I1d issue a 

default order assessing the proposed penalty amount 0[$84,000. 

In the Matler of Lake Sukakawea & Associates . LLC 
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UN ITE!) STATES 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTF.CTION Ad~~ - 3 PM I : 02 

REGION 8 

IN THE MATT ER OF: 

Luke S"k;lkawca & Associates, LLC 
2500 9th Avenu(' NW Ap:lrtment I 
Ma nd'lII, NO 5855-'-1526 

Respondent. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

•. •• ~ ~, r"1 0:;" <I-
Iloeke! No. C WA-08-2011 -0017 

)IlECLA RATION OF NATASIIA DAVIS 
) 
) 

---------------------) 

This lit"duration is likd in support of a motion !(If default and request lor assessment of civil 

p\.'llaltil''i brought by th~ ComplaimH1L thl: LI.S. i:nvironrncl1tal Protection Agcncy (EPA) RI:gion 

H. [0 supplement the rct.:orcl with n:spccllO its proposed penalty. Natasha Davis, Life Scientist. 

NPDES Enforcemt.:nt Unit. EPA Region 8 Water Technical Enforccl11l.!nt Program. hereby 

submits the following Declaration. 

I. Natasha Davis. declare as follows: 

I. I am cmpluy<..'d by EPA in the Region 8 Water Technical Enfon.:cmcnt Program. Since 

h:hnmry 2009. I ha\'l.' hi.'ld 1hl.' position or Lit;': Sdl.'ll tist. NPDES Enron:l:!11enl Unit. 

In my l:4.lIXIl:it) as a s~i(,:ntisL I am in\'ulwd with the de\'dopmcnl Orpl..'nalty l'alculations 

dl.!vdoped lor viulations of section 301 of the Clean Water Act (CWJ\). 

3. I was involved with development uC and rev iewed thc final penalty calculation lor. till' 

Clllllpbint in thi s ma1h:r and haw pcr!SOIwi kno\vk:dgc orthc matters sct forth in this 

I U SI~P 1\. 2009. S"rhJf/{// Waf(!/" (juC//ifY /nnml()/)'.' ]()O-l Reporl to ('(m~re.\'\". EP J\841·R·m~-OO I . 
l 1.S. Enviromlll.!lltal Protection Agency, Oflicc of Water, Washington, DC. 
1 US EI' J\. 1998. Nafiol1al Wafer QlIalify Inl'eI1101)': I YY6 Report to Congress. EPA841 -R-97-
008. U,S. Environmental Protection Agency. Office ofWmcr, Washington, DC. 



Dl'l.:laration. 

-+. On JUIlt.: 22, 2011. EPA filed an Administmtive Complaint and Noti!:c or Opportunity lor 

I learing in thi s matter, alteging that the Respondent, Lake Sakakuwea & Associates, LLC (LSA), 

violated section 402 or the CWA, 33 U.S.C. * 1342, by t~liling to respond to comply with the 

provisions of the NPDES permit issued to the Respondent lor construction o r n casino within the 

c.\{\..'rior boundaries ofthc Furt Berthold Indi 'Hl ReservUlion. The Complaint proPOSL'S iI pen'llty 

"i"$X4.000. 

5. In calculati ng a penalty. scctioll 309(g)(3) o rthe CWA. 33 U.S.C. * 1319(g)(3). requirL's 

that EPA take into account the nature, cin:umstanecs, extent and grav ity orthe violation, and 

with respec t to the violator, abilit y to pay. (IllY prior history of such violations. the degree of 

culpabil ity. cconomil' hL'ndit or savings (i1 any) resulting from the violation. und such Dlher 

ll1illll'rs asj ll st ice may n:quire. l'hL' proposed penalty in this matter is consistent with thL's\.' 

statutory ! ~H;tu rs. Thl: C WA statutory lil(;tors were used in calculat ing the proposl:d penalty 

because EPA's CWA programs have nOI adopted pleading (complaint-based) penalty policies 

and EPA guidance specilica ll y bars the usc oj' scttlemenl penalty policies in adm inistrative 

litigation. SI.!\! OECJ\ Guidance on Use of Penalty Policies in Administrative Li tigat ion at p.2, 

I"n.1 .. \ disc llssion orlhe application o r each of the CW/\ stalUtory factors in this matter follows. 

6. As 10 statutory 1~Il:t or !. the nature, L'ircumstanccs, extent and gravity llflhc \'iol:ltion, the 

A rmy Corps or Engineers inspected the Site and observed. among other things. thl: !o llowing: no 

erosion controlmcasurcs: erosion around the perimeter or the di s turbed area; growth ofnoxiolls 

weeds: no topsoil. vegetation, or reseeding: and un-stabilized site conditions. Il<ld thl.! 

Respondent implemented their SWPPP Hnd prupl.!rly installed and maintained thl.!ir BMPs, the 
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Rl.:spondent would have controlled its disdKlrges and minimized sediment erosiull threaICning 

sllrrounding slopl!s, land owned by the Corps, and Lake Sakakawcu. I llsl.!d the "Sllpplcrnl.:ntal 

Guidancl.! to lhl.! Interim Clean Water Act Settlement Policy ror Violation or the Construction 

Storm Water Requirements" (penalty Pol icy) to apply the staltllory penalty 1~lclClrs in a f~lir and 

consistent manner (Exhibit I) to calculate a gravity component of $64,7 18.40 which consists of 

( I) Ilcahh and Environl11l!l1tall-larm and (2) Signilicance of the Non-enlucnt I.illli t Violation. 

Section 305(b) of thl.! CWA l"eqllircs cach State to conduct wutcr quality survcys to 

determine a water body's overall health, including whether designated uses arc being met. States 

and othl!r jurisdictions conduct water quality surveys and report the findings to EPA every two 

)cars. EPA then prl!pares a biennial report to Congress. which represents the most complete and 

IIp-tll-dall.: snapshDI 0 1" wati.!l" quality i.!onditions around the country. Iligh sedillll.!nt loads can 

(!i:lllSC sedimentation or our nation's waters. \vhil:h thc EPA iound in 200-1- to bl! thi;' om: ufthe top 

t~n causes of impairment of water quality in rivcrs, streams. lakes, ponds <.Int! reservoirs l. Othl.:l" 

pollutants can bi;' adsorbl'd 0 1110 line sl.:diml.:l1t, causing nutrients. especially phosphorus. metals . 

:md organic i.!ompounds. to move into aquatic ecosystcms2
. Discharges from construction sites 

haw been identilicd as a source of pollution in 14 percent of impaired rivers and 6 percent of 

irnpaired lakes. ponds. and reservoirs I. 

The EPA has Icund that erosion rates from construction sites are much greater than from 

almost any other land usc. Suspended sl!dimcnt concentrations frolll construction sites have been 

found to be Illany times the concentrations li'om developed urban areas. Ex!';ess sed iment is 

It JS EPA. 2009 . .\'al iO/w/ Wall!r (jllalil), /111'''1110/)'." 2UO-l RI!/)()rl to ('OIl.!!.}"I!.\."". EP A841- R -08-00 I . 
l i .S. hl\ iromm:ntal Protection Agency. Orticc of \.V,ltcr. Washington. DC'. 
• LSEI'A. 1998 . .\'lIlia/la/lllt/ler Qllalif), /1II'elllmy· 1996 R"/JOrf If) ('ollgrl!.\s 1:I'A841-R-t)7-
OOX. l-.S. i'"tlVirolllllclltal PrOlI.!(!tion Agem;y, OfliI.:L' or Wnter. Washington. DC. 
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assol:ia\l..:d with iIKTl: .. lsl:d turbidity. with rCdlll:cd light pel1l.'tration in the \\[111.'1' col umn. with 

long-term habitat dcstruction . und with increased difficulty in filtering drinking water. See 64 

Fed. Reg. 68722, 68728-68731 (Dec. 8, 1999) Jor more inrormation on how di scharges from 

construct ion s ites C!lUSC wmcr pollution. 

!'he EPA and SlaWS \\,ilh authori7cd NPDES programs rely on the permit Pf(lgwlll 10 

impkment the cont ruls needed to prevent \\:I ter pollution. The Respolllknt 's failu re to properly 

comply with thl.: PI.Tmil and SWPPP jcopardizl.:s the integrity of EPA 's ,lI1d NDDII's programs to 

cont rol sediment pollution. 

7. As to statutory factor 2. ab ili ty to pay, EPA is without knowledge regarding 

Respondent' s ii nances. Hnd therefor!.! did not rcducl.' the penalty based upon thi s statutory !~ICtor. 

S. As to st3tll\(lrY rUl.:lOr 3. prior hi sto ry Dr violations, the complaint is till' first I.:nii.lr(':cll1(.·nt 

action EPA Region 8 has isslIcd to the Respondent rcgarding noneompliancc wi th the storm 

waleI' requirements. EPA did not factor history or violations into the penalty cakulalion. 

9 . As 10 statUlory l~lclOr 4, degree o r cu]pClbili ty. EPA's storm water program has been in 

plm,T since 1990. Till.! Rt'spondl'l1{ should have bl.'cn aware orlhc applicable storm \vatcr 

I'l!lluin.:mellis h~l:aLlSl' prior to commelKing. with the dc\'do pmcllt projel·1. ]{(:spondent hired a 

proli:ssional ~nginl'cring linn as u prujl'C! I:unsliltalll to prl'parl' thl.' specilil:<ltlollS and proposal 

fur sitc \'vork. road cOlls trw,:: tion. lagoon construct ion and n:lat~d items: and otherwise provitk 

technical assistance . In 1990, EPA prollluigatl'd Phase I orits storm wH\cr program. (55 Fed. 

Reg. 47990-48091, November 16. 1990.) Phasc I required NPDES permit authorization for 

storm water dist.:harges from construction activ it y disturbing live or more acres or land. e ither b) 

itsel f or in conj ullction with other parts or a common deve lopment. (55 Fcd. Reg. al 48066.) In 
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1999, EPA extcmk'd th is n:quircmcnt to storm water discharges fh)Jll construction activity 

disturbing between 1 and 5 acres orland. (64 Fed. Reg. 68722. 68839. Ikecmbcr 9.1999.) The 

NDDII has conducted numerOLIS training and olltreach activities over the past sevcral years to 

il1l.;reas~ thl: ]"(.:gulatl..!d comnHmity's awarenl..!ss of storm water control rl..!quiremcllts. Since 2002. 

these haw induded at kast 40 presentations to contmctors and construction engineers on permit 

compliance and sediment/erosion control. Therefore, the Respondent should have been fully 

aware or its responsibility to meet the requirements related to storm watcr control. 

10. As to statutory factor 5. economic bcnelit or savings resulting from the violation. I 

cstilllah:d Ih,lt by nut spl..!ntiing the rcqllin:d runds to install and maintain all ncccssary 13MPs 

( i.' .g .. :o;torllJ inkl prot~'clitJl1. straw \\addfl's. sill tl:l1c('). temporarily ilnd/or pi.'rmancntly stabili",,,: 

the Sil~' in a timely !lllmncr. inspect thl.' construction site. and dcvl..!lop and maintain a complete 

S WPPP thl' /{espolltknl avoided (.;osts thatcn . .'atcd all economic bendit. Using inj(lrInalillll 011 

cost oJ'matcrials. site conditions. and labor wages 1 estimated an avoickd cost 0/"$18 .792.00. 

This figure includes the following: (I) the costs uJ'crcating an ,ldequak SWPPP and kCl..!ping it 

up to date and complete for the months of January 2008 to April 2011 ($2); (2) the cost of 

implementing and maintaining J3MPs for the months or January 2008 through April 20 II 

($16.649); and (3) thc cost of performing inspections to satisfy the permit requir('menls for the 

months of January 2008 to April2011 ($2.141). 

1 I. As to statutory j~lctor 6, SllCh other matters as justice may rcquire. EPA is Lmawarc of any 

sllch matters and did not makl..! <.lny adjustments to the proposed penalty based on this statutory 

I t iS I·: P:\. ~ 009. ,Vaf iU/1ol I/'af!!/' Qllalify ! nI'l!lIfory: ]()O-l H!!lw/,1 10 C()rI},Vess. I : P A 841- R -m:-oo 1 . 
t I.S. h1\ ironll1cntal PnH~~ctillll Agcney. OniCl' or Wate],. Washington. DC. 
! LlSF PA. 1998. Naliot/allVofer QualifY !17I'elllO/'Y: /1.)1)6 Rel'ol"/ /() C'ongress IYA841-R-97-
008. U.S. EnvironnH.:ntal ProICction Agl..!ncy. OffiCl' of Water. WashinglUn. DC 
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fa t.:lOf. 

12. The filct:) rdl.l1cd 10 Ihe stalutory facto rs discussed in paragraphs 6 - 11, ubove. support 

the proposcd pcnalty of $84 .000 for the failllre 10 fully comply with the NPDES permit issued to 

the Respondenl. 

I dcdan: the /<) regoing to be tn\(: and correct to the best or my knowil:dgc. in/ormation 

<lud bdier ulHkr p\.:'I1<.1l ty nr pCljUl"). 

Dated: 423/2-<017-, 
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Natasha Davis 
NPDES Enlorccmenl Unit 
U.S. EPA. Region 8 


